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Summary of Questions/Comments & Responses

The following summarizes the general discussion during the pre-bid meeting held in Southwestern’s office in Tulsa, OK on June 3, 2004.  Questions/comments that were brought up during the meeting as well as questions submitted in writing are addressed.

General Items Noted by Gary Bridges, SWPA Contracting Officer

· All Contractor employees or sub-contractors that will be on U.S. Dept of Energy/Southwestern property as part of this project must be U.S. citizens.    

· All work performed under this contract is subject to the Davis-Bacon Act.

· Southwestern has the option to award this contract to two or more sources under this solicitation.

· Proposals that include exceptions taken to any part(s) of the solicitation will not be considered for award since this is an Invitation for Bid (IFB).  The intent of the pre-bid meeting (and the subsequent submittal of written questions) is to identify any issues and resolve them prior to submittal of proposals.

General

1. Under the description of the Synopsis, it is stated that there will be “no drawings issued”. How will the Scope of Work be conveyed, written narrative along with on site surveys? 

Response:  Drawings will be provided with each Delivery Order.
2. What are the Conceptual System Configurations, or Design Layout for this project?  

Response:  The overall communication system drawings will not be provided due to security issues.  Documentation necessary to complete the scope of work will be provided with each Delivery Order. 

3. What are the equipment interface points, i.e. does it connect through Analog or Digital Switches, ATM’s, or other Transport equipment or devices? 

Response:  Interface points will vary depending on the radio equipment installed.  The demarcation point for radio equipment installed under this contract, however, is the drop side interface of the equipment.  All connections (and associated testing) between the radio equipment and other network equipment will be performed by Southwestern.

4. Given the conceptual topology, what types of SONET multiplexers are expected to be used for the Digital Transmission? (Hence, OC-3, OC-12, OC-48, or OC-192’s) What are the user interface requirements at the OC​3 Level?

Response:  SONET multiplexers used may vary, but this does not affect the work under this contract.  Integration of radio equipment with other network equipment is not in the scope of work under this contract.  

5. Given the conceptual topology, who are the anticipated equipment vendors and or suppliers?  
Response:  Anticipated equipment vendors are as listed in Section 1.4.1 Southwestern-Furnished Materials and Property.

6. What are the recommended power sources for this project? i.e. UPS power system, verses Generators (Diesel), or Battery Back-up with Rectifiers. 
Response:  Southwestern sites have DC power systems with battery back up.  Most sites also have emergency generators.  Radio equipment will be DC powered.  

7. Will there be requirements for lightning protection?  
Response:  Southwestern sites have lightning protection systems in place.  Installation of Polyphaser coaxial cable protectors (furnished by Southwestern) is included in the scope of work for antenna systems using LDF series (or equal) cable (Section 2.2.2 Transmission Line Installation). 

8. When we address 900 MHZ radio frequency gateways.... being used for Point-to-Point communications, are they for (Long haul or Short haul) usage.  
Response:  900 MHz radios may be used in both short and long haul applications depending on the project. 

9. This Synopsis implies equipment Installation Only, however it appears because of the lack of specifics regarding the existing system topology vs. the “planned improvements” to the existing system topology, the expectations of the prospective clients may require a Design and Build Effort. Please advise.  
Response:  This contract is for installation only.  Southwestern will perform all required design (i.e. path surveys/designs, equipment selection, site layout, tower analysis, etc.).

10. We will need to conduct Site Surveys to establish Ground and Terrain clearance and clearance from any Trees, Buildings, Water and any other features that may affect the path.  
Response:  Path surveys are not in the scope of work included in this contract.  Southwestern will have performed path surveys as part of the design prior to issuance of delivery orders for the installation work.
11. What will be the Transmission Mechanization, Microwave-Microwave, Microwave-Satellite, and Microwave to Fiber Optics? Given the systems are in Military arena are there any special interfaces between the Transmission Mechanization and the SONET equipment?  
Response:  See response to questions 3 and 4.  Southwestern communication systems are not in the “military arena”.

12. Above Ground Level (AGL).  Different AGL’s require different amount of labor and material. Ex: An AGL of 200’ will be more cost driven than an AGL of 100’.  Response:  Unit pricing for different height ranges has been included in Section B to address the cost variance of installation at different heights.

13. Will the new system use existing towers and buildings? 

Response:  Yes.
14. Will the contractor be responsible for constructing or erecting towers or buildings? 
Response:  No.

15. Will microwave pairs be burned-in by SWPA, or will programming, configuration and pre-installation burn-in be the responsibility of the contractor?

Response:  Commissioning of radios is included with the scope of work for installation of the radios.  If scope of work given to contractor includes radio installation, then the contractor shall be responsible for commissioning and testing of the radio path.

16. Is there sufficient tower and building space to accommodate the old and new systems simultaneously at all sites?  
Response:  Typically there will be adequate space.  There may be some locations, however, where existing equipment will have to be removed prior to installation of new equipment. 

17. Will you be able to provide site locations and will prospective bidders be able to visit the sites before bid submission?  
Response:  No. Due to security reasons, site-specific information will only be made available as part of the Delivery Orders issued after contract award. 

18. Who is responsible for meeting path performance criteria?  

Response:  Southwestern is responsible for the path design/performance.  All paths have been surveyed as part of the design, and no path issues are expected.  If issues pertaining the path performance are encountered, then Southwestern will be responsible for addressing them.  

19. How can the Contractor recover the costs associated with incorrect path engineering?  

Response:  Additional time required by the contractor that is attributable to incorrect path engineering will be negotiated on an individual case basis.

20. Who has the burden of proof for incorrect path engineering or material specification?  

Response:  Burden of proof lies primarily with the Contractor.  The Contractor and the Southwestern COR will work together to determine steps necessary to resolve any issues that the Contractor believes are due to Southwestern’s design.  If additional expense is incurred for testing, site surveys, etc. that proves fault with Southwestern’s design, then Southwestern is responsible for these costs and any extra costs incurred by the Contractor.  If the additional testing (or other required work) proves fault with work performed by the Contractor, then the Contractor is responsible for all associated expenses incurred.    
21. Can the path survey be provided prior to the Contractor prior to acceptance of the task order?  

Response:  Yes, the path survey can be included with the design package in the Delivery Order.

22. Who has the add drop multiplexer?  

Response:  Southwestern.
23. What on-site performance tests are required and what are the associated performance criteria?  
Response:  Performance tests and associated performance criteria are as specified in Section 2.2.5 System Testing and Alignment, and Section 2.4.1.1 Initial Checkout and Tests.  Contractor is also required to perform any other tests specified as part of the installation and turn-up procedures from the radio equipment manufacturer. 

24. When will de-installation take place?  
Response:  Typically any de-installation work will be performed as part of the same Delivery Order as the installation work.  The intent is to perform all site-specific work as part of one mobilization.  

25. Is the equipment purchased prior to start up? 

Response:  Yes, Southwestern will have purchased all equipment necessary for the specific project to be constructed and have it stored in one of their warehouse facilities prior to issuing the Delivery Order. 

26. Who is responsible for the site?  

Response:  The contractor is responsible for all Southwestern-furnished equipment once it is removed from Southwestern’s warehouse facility.  Any damage to the physical site as a result of the Contractor’s work is also the responsibility of the Contractor.  Damage to the physical site not attributable to the Contractor (i.e. acts of God, etc.) is the responsibility of Southwestern.  

27. What is the average distance between sites?  
Response:  Distance between sites will vary depending on the project.  For determining mobilization costs, the distance from Tulsa, OK (originating point) to the farthest sight included in the Delivery Order will be used. 

28. Can we work on HOPS simultaneously?  

Response:  Contractor can determine the most efficient method for completing the work included in the Delivery Order.

29. Who will supply any parts that are not supplied or located on site? 

Response:  This will be resolved between Southwestern and the Contractor on a site-by-site basis.  If the Contractor is asked to furnish part(s) not included in the original scope of work, then a change order will be used.     

30. Will Delivery Orders issued have installation details with them? 
Response:  Yes, installation details will be included in the installation package with each Delivery Order.   

31. Warranty, who is responsible for the equipment?  

Response:  Warranties are provided for the equipment from the manufacturer, but if damaged by the contractor, then the Contractor will be responsible for replacing the equipment. See Section E.05 paragraph (i).

32. Can we do pre-testing of the radio equipment at the warehouse facility(s)?  Response:  Yes, but only if determined to be beneficial.  These facilities, however, do not have DC power available.  

33. When is the start date?  
Response:  The Delivery Order for the first project will be ready immediately following award of the contract.  Schedule will be developed with Contractor once the delivery order is issued. 

34. Provide the link to the DOE’s secure Industry Interactive Procurement System for electronic download of documents and upload of electronic submission.

Response:  https://e-center.doe.gov/
35. Provide the link to, or copies, of the documentation required to clear non-US citizens for access to Federal facilities.

Response:  Southwestern Power Administration’s Security Officer will forward forms when requested by the contractor.

36. Can SWPA provide “typical” site drawings and photographs?

Response:  Typical site drawings and photographs will be posted on IIPS for general information only.

37. Confirm frequency coordination and licensing is performed by SWPA.

Response:  All frequency coordination and licensing will be performed by Southwestern. 

38. Confirm that all towers have been analyzed and are capable of supporting the required loading.

Response:  Southwestern is responsible for all tower analysis and any required modifications to ensure that planned antenna/coax additions can be supported.  Tower analysis/modifications will be completed prior to releasing the Delivery Order(s) to install antenna systems. 

39. Confirm that tower modifications and tenant improvements services are performed by others prior to Contractor deployment.

Response:  Any required tower modifications or associated tenant improvements will be completed by others prior to issuance of Delivery Order to Contractor.

40. Confirm that there is no requirement for “hot cut” activities or “maintenance window” activities.

Response:  No “hot cut” or “maintenance window” work is anticipated under this contract.  If in the unlikely event this type of scheduling were required, then this would be considered a modification to the contract and the additional scope of work negotiated.

41. Confirm that pricing is Per Radio / Per Antenna / Per Site, not per complete link (hop).

Response:  Section B line item pricing is for installation/testing of a single unit, whereas the unit is defined as a single antenna system or radio equipment that is installed at one site.  Each end of a defined path is considered a separate line item.  Main and space diversity antennas installed at one site are also considered as two separate line items.  

42. Confirm that the price for path alignment and testing services requiring a complete link is to be split equitably.  For example, installing one antenna will include one half of the path alignment charges.

Response:  Path alignment and testing services should be split equally and included in the associated line item(s) for installation/testing of the antenna system and/or radio equipment at each end of the path.

43. Are background checks or security clearances required for Contractor staff entering SWPA sites or sites where SWPA equipment is co-located?

Response:  Background or security clearances are not required by Southwestern.  The Contractor, however, is responsible for ensuring personnel performing work under this contract comply with the requirements included in the solicitation.  

44. Lacing is mentioned several times in the document; are tyraps allowed or is lacing the only approved methodology of securing cables?

Response:  Lacing is the required method for securing cables.  

45. Since all companies were not able to attend the pre-bid conference, will SWPA release the names, organizations and contact numbers of the attendees?

Response:  Names and organization represented are included in this document.  Contact numbers were not collected.
46. Can the Contractor decline to perform a task/delivery order for any reason other than minimum/maximum order size?

Response:  No.
47. After the pre-bid conference, how will additional questions be answered?

Response:  Questions submitted in writing by Friday (6/4) cob, will be responded to in writing and posted on IIPS.  Any other questions should be directed to the Contracting Officer.

48. Does the Contractor’s Superintendent need to be on site at all times during acceptance?

Response:  Yes – see Section I.81. Person with the authority to make decisions on behalf of the Contractor is required on-site during acceptance.

49. What remedies are available for modifying the firm fixed price due to unforeseen, unidentified, or non-disclosed items?

Response:  Change orders will used to address any changes is scope of work.  See FAR 52.243-4 Changes (Aug 1987).

50. Where are the site locations?

Response:  Site locations are throughout Southwestern’s four-state region of Oklahoma, Missouri, Arkansas, and Texas.  Site-specific locations will be provided with each delivery order.

51. Describe the access to each of these locations?

Response:  Access to the sites will vary.  Typical access will be dirt or gravel access roads.

52. Will site surveys be permitted prior to accepting the task/delivery order?

Response:  If the Contractor prefers to have completed the site survey(s) prior to formal acceptance of the task/delivery order, then it can be worked into the task/delivery order process.  Any expenses incurred by the Contractor prior to accepting the task/delivery order, however, would be the Contractor’s responsibility.  

53. What is the anticipated maximum number of concurrent hops going in?

Response:  This number of concurrent hops will vary depending on project and funding available.      

Section C – Description/Specifications/Work Statement

1. Section 1.1 - Scope Of Work. 

a. Site surveys?  
Response:  After receipt of Delivery Order, Contractor is required to 1.) Attend an on-site meeting at the equipment storage facility to inventory Southwestern-furnished materials for the project, and 2.) survey the project sites to review the scope of work and ensure that all equipment/materials required to complete the job have been furnished.

b. Security for storage areas?  
Response:  Contractor is responsible for all Southwestern-furnished equipment after picking it up from Southwestern’s warehouse.  Contractor is responsible for providing secure storage facilities at the project sites. 
c. Two weeks prior to mobilization may be insufficient time to 1.) inspect materials and inventory all project-specific materials stored at the Southwestern maintenance facility, 2.) inspect the project site(s), and 3.) review the project-specific plans furnished by Southwestern.

i. Can the project specific plans be provided well in advance of mobilization?

ii. Can a site survey then be performed to verify site preparation for the task?

iii. Who is responsible for site preparation and materials should the task order fail to adequately identify the work?

Response:  Two weeks prior to mobilization was set as a minimum; exact schedule will be mutually agreed to with the Contractor.  Site-specific plans will be provided with the Delivery Order, after which the schedule will be determined.  Included in the schedule will be the dates agreed to for the site visits.  Any required site work or materials not identified in the delivery order is the responsibility of Southwestern.  Southwestern may, however, request that the Contractor perform the required work and/or furnish the additional materials, which would be handled as a contract change. 

d. Define secure storage facilities at the project site(s).

i. Will the Contractor have any indoor storage space available at the project site?

Response:  Indoor storage space will vary at the sites.  Contractor can use the indoor storage space when available as long as it doesn’t interfere with Southwestern’s operation. Contractor is ultimately responsible, however, for providing secure storage space.

ii. Is there perimeter security at the project site?

Response:  Typical sites do have a perimeter security fence.

iii. Will off-site secure storage be acceptable?

Response:  Off-site secure storage will be considered only if on-site facilities are not feasible.

e. What expenses is the Contractor responsible for as the result of delays in the project attributed to missing materials or equipment that were not identified during the on-site meeting?

Response:  Contractor will only be responsible for the labor and per diem expenses of his crews, and any re-mobilization or other associated costs incurred by the Contractor or his representatives.
2. Section 1.2 – Submittals.  Time frame for submitting drawings and catalog data sheets?  
Response:  Contractor is required to furnish drawings or catalog data for any contractor-furnished equipment/materials to Southwestern for approval.  Southwestern’s review/approval time noted in the specification is within 30 days, however, a much shorter turnaround is typical.  

3. Section 1.4 - Materials & equipment. 

a. Fiber optic cable required for radio equipment interconnects?  

Response:  Fiber optic cables for connecting SONET microwave radios to fiber interface panels will be provided by Southwestern.  Any fiber optic cables/connectors required for interfacing test equipment to perform specified the Contractor shall furnish testing.  

b. 8 hour back up power required (batteries)?  
Response:  Existing DC power systems are available at Southwestern facilities.  Contractor is only required to install power cable from existing DC power panel to the equipment being installed.

4. Section 1.4.1.1 - Materials.

a. Confirm that boots and donuts for the entry ports are supplied by SWPA.

Response:  Existing coax/waveguide entrance panels and weather boots are available at the sites. 

b. Confirm that waveguide and coax connectors are provided by SWPA.

Response:   Coax/waveguide and connectors are furnished by SWPA for installation by the Contractor.

c. Confirm that pipe mounts will be supplied by SWPA.

Response:  Pipe mounts will be furnished by Southwestern.  Antenna installation includes installation of new pipe mounts or relocation of existing pipe mounts to accommodate the required antenna mounting location (See Section 2.2.1 Antenna Installation).

5. Section 1.4.1.2 – Property.

Confirm that DC power plants will have adequate capacity and breaker space prior to contractor deployment.

Response:  Existing DC power plant will have adequate capacity for the equipment to be installed.  DC power panels will have existing breakers available, or will have the required space for installation of new DC breakers (furnished by Southwestern).

6. Section 1.4.2.1 – General

a. Building material structure ( mortar, brick, wood)? 

Response:  Radio buildings are concrete, cinder block, or metal pre-fabricated buildings.

b. Existing floor plans?

Response:  Floor plans will be provided with the Delivery Order.
c. Existing cabling plan (racks, raceways)?

Response:  Various raceway systems exist at Southwestern facilities.  Typical facility has overhead cable ladder system for routing communications cable.  All power/control cabling is installed in metal conduit.  CLARIFICATION:  The specification requirement for “raceway” (Section 3.4) is for the Contractor to furnish/install the conduit required for the power and control cable to be installed.  Contractor is not required to furnish or install cable ladder or other type of tray system.  

d. Equipment rack height? 

Response:  Typical rack is standard 7 foot, 19 inch EIA steel racks.

7. Section 1.4.2.1 - General.

a. Confirm that the “worst case” raceway requirement is to be priced into every radio installation.

Response:  Since the size of the facilities will vary, the approximate size of the larger Southwestern facilities was provided so bidders could determine  “worst case” requirements.  Whether or not to assume “worst case” for every installation is up to the discretion of individual bidders.   

b. Define type and size of standard SWPA raceway required.

Response:  The specification requirement is that the Contractor furnishes the conduit for all power/control cable installed (See Clarification above in Question 6).  Conduit shall be sized based on industry standards for the size of cable to be run.  Type of conduit is as specified in Section 3.4.2 Materials.

8. Section 1.5.2 – Access to the Work and Haul Routes.

Why will existing access roads not be suitable for hauling equipment to the site?

Confirm that all sites have existing access and that this access is adequate for the scope of work.

Response:  The current access roads should be suitable.  Construction of haul roads should not be required.  However, in the unlikely event that construction is required, then the Contractor is responsible for this work. 

9. Section 1.5.3 – Protection of Existing Installations.  
The IFB mentions “excavation”. What excavation is required if existing buildings and towers are used? 
Response:  No excavation is anticipated.  If any it would be minimal.

10. Section 2.1 – General.

Confirm that 98% of the SWPA sites are freestanding towers not rooftops, water tanks, etc.

Response:  The only non-tower sites are the Tulsa office building and hydroelectric dam facilities.  These non-tower sites account for approximately 5% of Southwestern’s communication sites.

The antenna planned for the Tulsa office is a six (6) foot dish that can be transported up the freight elevator to the penthouse where it will be installed.  Radio equipment will be installed in same room as the antenna.  

11. Section 2.1.1 – Personnel Qualifications.

Confirm that proven or demonstrated experience may be considered equal to certification.

Response:  It is understood that certification policies may vary with different radio manufacturers.  If the radio equipment manufacturer offers a certification program, then the personnel performing the work are required to be certified.  If the manufacturer does not offer a certification program, then the contractor shall be required to document their qualifications for performing such work.  Consideration will be given to manufacturer specific training completed, and field experience installing manufacturer specific radio equipment.  

12. Section 2.1.3 – Equipment Racks.

a. Confirm that a rack is required per radio.

Response:  For the unit pricing in Section B, the Contractor can assume one radio per rack is required.  Actual number of radios installed per rack, however, will vary.  

b. Confirm that typical rack installation is bolt down and top brace.

Response:  Typical rack installation is bolt down with top bracing.
c. Confirm that there are no seismic requirements for rack mounting.

Response:  Only rack mounting requirements are floor bolts and top supports.  No special seismic mounting requirements. 

d. Confirm that there are no electrical or ground isolation requirements.

Response:  There are no rack installation requirements for electrical or ground isolation.
e. Will Southwestern-furnished relay racks have all the required installation materials provided, such as grounding clamps, braces, and floor anchors?

Response:  No, the Contractor is required to furnish any miscellaneous hardware required for the installation of the rack. 
f. Are there any raised floors?

Response:  No raised floor rack installations are anticipated. 
13. Section 2.2.2 – Transmission Line Installation

a. Confirm that pricing is to include the installation of one line (coax or waveguide) per dish.

Response:  Unit pricing is based on one transmission line (coax or waveguide) per antenna. 

b. Confirm that Quad diversity installations will be priced as a stand alone or hourly activity.

Response:  Quad-Diversity refers to the radio configuration that uses both space and frequency diversity.  The same unit price included in Section B for Radio Installation shall be used for all radio configurations (i.e. hot-standby, space diversity, frequency diversity, or quad-diversity). 

Southwestern is also designing some of its radio paths to support 

4 x OC-3 Radios. The 4 x OC-3 application will use 4 frequency pairs – 2 pairs in the 7.485 – 8.5 GHz band, and 2 pairs in the 4.4 – 4.940 GHz band.  This application will use multi-band, dual-feed antennas.  Since the unit pricing in Section B for Antenna System Installation is based on a single waveguide run per antenna, the cost for installation of the second waveguide run will be treated as a modification to the contract and the cost associated with the installation/testing of the additional waveguide will be negotiated.

c. Confirm that the waveguide ladder will have adequate space for the required lines. 

Response:  Existing waveguide ladder should have the necessary space available for installation of the transmission line.

d. Define the average horizontal coax or waveguide length required inside the shelter.

Response:  Transmission line length inside the shelter will vary depending on the size of the shelter.  The “worst case” can be determined based on the shelter dimensions provided in Section 1.4.2.1 – General.

14. Section 2.2.4 – Drying and Pressurization Equipment Installation

Clarification:  The dehydrators furnished by Southwestern can be either AC or DC powered. Conduit is required for both AC and DC power cable. 

a. Define SWPA expectations for AC conduit length required to power the dehydrators.

Response:  Conduit lengths will vary depending on the size and configuration of the building.  

b. What type of receptacle is allowed; standard receptacle, twist lock receptacle or hard wire to AC panel.

Response:   Depending on the application, the installation may require any of the above.  
c. Where is the receptacle typically located, above rack, top of rack, bottom of rack?

Response:  Typically, the receptacle will be installed at the bottom of rack.
15. Section 2.2.5 – System Testing and Alignment.

Is Anritsu (Wiltron) sweep equipment on the SWPA approved equipment list?

Response:  Yes.

16. Section 2.3 – Antenna System Removal.

a. Confirm that SWPA does not want any of the old dishes and line returned to SWPA warehouse facilities.

Response:  Contractor is responsible for the proper disposable of the transmission line and antennas removed.  None of the antenna systems removed will be returned to Southwestern.

b. Confirm that SWPA does not want any salvage value rebated to SWPA.

Response:  There will be no salvage value rebated to SWPA for antenna systems removed by the Contractor.

c. Does SWPA want receipt from licensed disposal location confirming disposal?

Response:  Not required.

17. Section 2.4

a. Confirm if conduit is required for DC power cabling. This is not “typical” as DC cabling is usually attached to the cable raceways inside the shelter.

Response:  Conduit is required for DC power cabling.  Typical installation will include conduit from the DC power panel to the top of the rack where the equipment is located.  Lacing shall be used to secure power cable to rack.

b. Confirm that licensed electricians are not required for 24V or 48V cable installation.

Response:  The requirement is that all electrical work be performed by qualified persons familiar with the latest specifications of the NEC and NESC, and applicable State codes (See Section 3.3 – Installation).  

c. Confirm that the contractor demark for radio installation is a SWPA provided DSX and SWPA provided alarm terminal blocks.

Response:  Demarcation point for radio installations will be either cross-connect panels (FSX, DSX, etc.) or the interface at the particular radio.  Demarcation point for all radio alarms will be at alarm interface terminal blocks provided by Southwestern.

d. Confirm that SWPA technicians will perform radio integration into the SWPA network.

Response:  Any integration of radio equipment with other Southwestern network equipment will be performed by Southwestern personnel.

18. Section 2.4.1.1 – Initial Checkout and Tests.

a. Confirm that delays, standby and/or retesting activities due to failure of SWPA supplied equipment will be at the hourly rate specified in the pricing sheets.

Response:  Contractor is responsible for re-testing as needed for acceptance and should plan for some level of re-testing as is typical for this type of project.  Equipment failure(s) identified which are corrected with installation of a readily available spare(s) or software fix are considered typical for this type of installation project.  Any delays, standby, and/or re-testing that is determined to be atypical will be negotiated based on the hourly rate specified in Section B, CLIN 6.1.

b. Confirm that SWPA has all required spares, including frequency specific spares, available to continue testing if a component fails.

Response:  Southwestern typically purchases the manufacturer recommended spares.

c. Will SWPA deliver the required spares to the worksite or is Contractor obligated to pick up the spares from one of the depots?

Response:  Southwestern will have the purchased spare parts available at the project site as needed.

d. Confirm that SWPA will handle all returned material authorization (RMA) activities with the original equipment manufacture (OEM).

Response:  As owner of the equipment, Southwestern will be responsible for any RMAs with the OEMs.

19. Section 3.0 – Electrical.
Does the State typically perform electrical inspections of SWPA sites?

Response:  No.  All electrical work, however, shall be in compliance with the latest edition of the NEC, NESC, and applicable State codes.

20. Section 3.4 - Electrical Raceway System
Are there existing electrical raceways in any of the buildings at this time?  
Response:  Various raceway systems exist at Southwestern facilities.  Typical facility has overhead cable ladder system for routing communications cable.  All power/control cabling is installed in metal conduit.  CLARIFICATION:  The specification requirement for “raceway” (Section 3.4) is for the Contractor to furnish/install the conduit required for the power and control cable to be installed.  Contractor is not required to furnish or install cable ladder or other type of tray system.  

21. Section 4.0

Are SWPA documents, work orders, site drawings, etc made available to the Contractor in electronic format?

Response:  Hard copies will be provided.  Electronic format can also be provided as needed. 

22. Section 4.4 – Project Documentation.  

Define SWPA “redline” methodology and colors.

Response:  The following color scheme shall be used for “redlining” drawings to reflect “as-built” conditions:  Red – additions to dwg; Green – removals from dwg; Blue – notes or instructions to drafter that are not to be included on the dwg.  
Section E - Inspection and Acceptance

1. Section E.04 – Inspection and Acceptance.

Is contractor copied on the SWPA inspector’s daily reports?

Response:  Copies of SWPA Inspector’s daily reports can be provided as requested.

Section F – Deliveries or Performance

1. Section F.03 – Performance of Work by Contractor.  

What is the basis for determining the Fifty percent (50%) work rule?  
Response:  The requirement that the Contractor perform at least 50% of the work will be determined based on the overall amount of work performed under the contract, not on an individual Delivery Order basis.

2. Section F.06 – Progress Meetings.

Is representation of the Contractor and/or sub-trades via teleconference acceptable to SWPA?

Response:  Yes, as long as at least one representative of the Contractor physically attends the meeting.

Section H – Special Contract Requirements

1. Section H.03 – Amount of Bid Guarantee.

Define the methodology to determine bid bond value based on the pricing sheet provided.

Response:  Determination of bid bond will be based on the total value of the line items for all five years of the contract.

2. Section H.06 – Character of Workmen, Methods, and Equipment.

Does this imply that Contractor is obligated to define crews for SWPA and maintain set crews for the duration of the project?

Response:  Contractor is required to define crews.  Personnel changes are allowed as long as Southwestern receives prior notification.    
3. Section H.16 - Minimum Wage Determination and Fringe Benefits.

As requested in the General section of this document – please provide Wage Determinations required for the Fixed Price Matrix.

Response:  Please see FAR 52.222-6 Davis Bacon Act (Feb 1995).  Current copies of the Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) can be obtained at http://www.arnet.gov/far/
Section I – Contract Clauses

1. Section I.22.  Provide the Davis-Bacon Act wage determination(s) Contractor is to use as a basis for the fixed pricing matrix.

Response:  Please see FAR 52.222-6 Davis Bacon Act (Feb 1995).  Current copies of the Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) can be obtained at http://www.arnet.gov/far/
2. Section I.81 - FAR 52.236-6 Superintendence By The Contractor (Apr 1984). Does the “authority to act for the Contractor” mean enter into legally binding agreements?

Response:  Yes.
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